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Constructed in 1858 by early mid-Willamette Valley pioneers, the Rock Creek 
Methodist Church building became the starting point for the Butteville, Rock Creek- 
Hubbard circuit. Land was donated from the corners of several Donation Land Claims 
and John Killin supervised fellow church laymen in the construction of the building. 
Clusters of oak trees to the north and a small cemetery to the south surround the 
rectangular (20 x 24) foot one story structure.

The building is balloon framed supported by hewn sills which rest on brick 
piers. Shiplap siding surrounds three double hung windows on the north and south 
sides. The east elevation is blind and the west has a single double door entrance. 
The double-hung Federal style windows have nine lights over six. Although the sid­ 
ing incorporates a very unusual cavetto curve, other exterior detail is very simple 
including boxed eaves, narrow corner boards, and no water table. The ceiling and 
walls are composed of six inch wide hand planed lumber. All interior surfaces 
are intact including windows, doors, and a very handsome alter rail. The pews 
are an early plank type.

The vestibule was constructed about 1920. Two features here differ from the 
original structure. The rafters are exposed and the two windows are double hung 
sash, four lights over four. The vestibule has two five panel doors. The Rock 
Creek Cemetery Association has maintained the building and grounds since 1950 
and provides a sinking fund for future maintenance.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Rock Creek Methodist Church is one of few remaining early circuit churches 
in Oregon. This simple one room church was carefully constructed, and is unaltered 
except for the added vestibule. The simple elegance of this structure stands as an 
example of the unpretentious lives of early Oregon settlers.

Methodist ministers began working and developing circuits in the lower Wil- 
lamette Valley in 1848. By 1850, seven circuits had been established with a total 
of "443 members and one colored member." In 1854 a group of mid^Willamette Valley 
pioneers who had rececently immigrated to Oregon gathered in a log schoolhouse near 
the Needy Post Office, which was established a year later. The Rock Creek Metho­ 
dist Church developed from this meeting. The Rock Creek Methodist Church, like 
other Methodist Churches in the region, could not afford a full-time pastor (had 
one been available). Therefore, out of necessity, they joined with other churches 
and established a circuit. C. 0. Hosford served as the first circuit rider. Other 
stops on the circuit for the Reverend Hosford were Butteville, Howell Prairie, 
Bald Hill, Union School House, Marquam School House, Grassy Point School House, 
Hubbard, Woodburn, and Glad Tidings. It is doubtful that all of these stops were 
on the circuit at one and the same time, but they were all constituent parts.

The Rock Creek Methodist Church held services at the local schoolhouse until 
a wood frame structure was built. A building committee, organized in 1857, de­ 
veloped a building plan and raised the necessary funds. The land for the church 
and cemetery was donated by the church families. The E. G. Boynton family, early 
residents of Woodburn now buried in the church cemetery, donated the basic holdings 
of four and a half acres. John Kill in, a layman of the Church, supervised the con­ 
struction, which was completed in 1858. Samuel Redman Oglesby, another early circuit 
rider, presided over the first services in the new building. It was not until 1860 
that the church had its first resident preacher. However, the Reverend J. Conner's 
ministry was short-lived. One day, shortly after his arrival, he traveled to Silver- 
ton and in the pursuing day's events won a wager and drank the reward, a dram. The 
elders demanded retribution for this sinful act and Reverend Conner left the Rock 
Creek Church.
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ROCK CREEK METHODIST CHURCH

2. Location (cont.)

Rock Creek Methodist Church is located in Sec. 5, T 5 S, R1E, of 
the Willamette Meridian in Clackamas County, Oregon.

8. Significance (cont.)

Church activities continued in a less public fashion until 1920 when 
regular services were discontinued as a result of financial instability and 
ebbing attendance. The edifice has since remained unused except for funerals, 
an occasional wedding, and an annual pioneer day picnic. The Rock Creek 
Cemetery Association maintains the cemetery and church building through 
funds given at the pioneer picnics and other occasions. In 1939 the Methodist 
Conference designated the Rock Creek Methodist Church a historic shrine.
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